
  

 

The Organisation of Asylum and Migration Policies 
 

Factsheet: AUSTRIA 
1. Introduction  

This factsheet provides an overview of how asylum and migration policies are organised in Austria, 

including the organisation of the institutional and regulatory context and framework for dealing with third-

country nationals coming for the purpose of legal immigration or for international protection.  

2. Overview of organisation of political, legislative and institutional framework 

2.1 The political system  

Austria’s federal structure is stipulated in the constitution and, as such, is a fundamental principle in 

Austrian law. Austria is a federation consisting of nine provinces. Each province is governed by a provincial 

government, which is under the leadership of the governor of the province. The provincial parliaments 

represent the interests of the citizens in the respective province and are in charge of the provincial legislation 

and the election of the provincial government. 

Legislative and executive jurisdiction is divided between the Federal State and the provinces. The legislative 

branch is exercised by the federal and the provincial parliaments. The implementation of the legislation is 

the task of the executive branch. The executive branch consists of two components – the administration and 

the judiciary. 

Austria´s judiciary has undergone significant restructuring due to a wide-ranging reform of the Austrian 

system of administrative jurisdiction, which took effect on 1 January 2014. This reform created the so-called 

“9+2 model”: nine provincial administrative courts, a Federal Administrative Court and a Federal Fiscal 

Court. From now on most administrative acts can be contested before one of the eleven administrative 

courts. 

During the course of this administrative reform a restructuring of the asylum and aliens authorities also took 

place. In this respect the main change was the establishment of the Federal Office for Immigration and 

Asylum, which since 1 January 2014 has replaced the former Federal Asylum Office. 

2.2 The institutional context  

In the field of migration, legislative and executive powers lie mainly within the competence of the Federal 

State. The Federal Ministry of the Interior holds the main responsibility for the area of asylum and migration 

policies. The Federal Office for Immigration and Asylum is under the responsibility of the Federal Ministry 

of the Interior and is the first instance authority in asylum and other migration procedures. 

Police officers and the police administrations of the provinces are also under the responsibility of the Federal 

Ministry of the Interior and play an important role in the implementation and execution of tasks in the field 

of asylum and migration. 

The Federal Ministry for Europe, Integration and Foreign Affairs is specifically responsible for integration 

issues. Its partner, the Austrian Integration Fund supports recognized refugees and migrants in their 

integration process. 

The Federal Ministry of Labour, Social Affairs, Health and Consumer Protection is inter alia responsible for 

labour market policies and, therefore, also for policies linked to employment of foreigners.  

 

  



2.3 The legal system  

The main legal documents in the field of migration are the Asylum Act, the Federal Police Act, the 

Settlement and Residence Act, the Citizenship Act, the Act Governing the Employment of Foreigners and 

the basic welfare support acts of the federal state and the provinces. The interplay of these legal documents 

is often quite complex. Many legal documents are determined by legal acts of the European Union. 

Any administrative decision may be appealed to an independent administrative court with full jurisdiction. 

These administrative courts are supposed to be independent tribunals within the meaning of Article 6 ECHR. 

Appeals to the Constitutional Court and to the Administrative High Court against decisions of the 

administrative courts are possible. 

3. Development of asylum and migration systems  

Nowadays, Austria tries to attract qualified workers through the so called Red-White-Red – Card. An 

increasing focus is given to the integration of immigrants in Austria. For example, basic German language 

skills must be acquired in order to obtain certain residence titles. Further, third-country nationals with a 

Settlement Permit in general have to fulfil the so called Integration Agreement. 

4. Organisation of policy 

So far, asylum applications in general may only be lodged in the territory of Austria. Responsible authority 

is the Federal Office for Immigration and Asylum. The Federal Office for Immigration and Asylum 

examines whether the application has to be rejected or whether the asylum-seeker is to be considered as a 

refugee under the Geneva Convention on Refugees or entitled to subsidiary protection. In addition there 

exist three different residence permits for humanitarian reasons. 

On the contrary, applications for residence titles usually have to be lodged outside of Austria at the 

respective representation authority. The Austrian Settlement and Residence Act mainly distinguishes 

between temporary residence and long-term settlement. For each year, the Federal Government issues a 

Settlement Regulation determining quotas for certain residence titles and work permits. The variety of 

residence permits in the Austrian migration law is particularly difficult to oversee. 

Third-country nationals may appeal against a negative decision to the respective administrative court. 

Against a decision of an administrative court it is possible to lodge an appeal before the High Administrative 

Court or before the Constitutional Court. 

As regards Austrian’s return policy a distinction has to be made between forced and voluntary return. Forced 

return refers to cases where a person is forcibly removed from Austria for a certain reason, while voluntary 

return to the country of origin, transit or another third-country based on the free will of the returnee is either 

independent or assisted. In the case of assisted voluntary return the return process is supported by various 

actors. 

5. Analysis of asylum and migration systems  

The Austrian migration law has been changed very often, which also leads to additional complexity. Many 

legal documents are determined by legal acts of the European Union, which again renders the legal situation 

more complicated. The variety of residence permits in the Austrian migration law is particularly difficult to 

oversee. 

A main change in the Austrian legal system was the establishment of administrative courts in 2014. Now 

any administrative decision may be appealed to an independent administrative court with full jurisdiction.  

Austria has been confronted with a comparatively high number of asylum-seekers in recent years. 

Accordingly, migration is a very sensitive and current topic in Austria. A recent major event is the sudden 

influx of a great number of migrants in 2015 and 2016. Said influx has been met with considerable efforts 

and assistance also from civil society.  
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6. Institutional Chart for Austria 

 

  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Public Employment Service 
AMS - www.ams.at 

 
 
 
 

 
- Issuance, administration of work permits 

 

Federal Office for Immigration and Asylum 
BFA – www.bfa.gv.at 

 

 

 
 
 

- First instance asylum procedure 

- Granting and withdrawal of political refugee status and subsidiary 

protection status 

- Imposing return decisions and where applicable entry bans and 

enforcement orders 

- Granting residence titles in cases of exceptional circumstances 

- Issuing of the documents related to asylum proceedings 

- Decisions on pre-deportation detention and more lenient 

measures 

- Procurement of return certificates 

- Execution of the Federal Government Basic Welfare Support Act 

as federal authority 

 

Judicial review 
 
 
 

Federal Administrative Court 
BVwG - www.bvwg.gv.at/ 

 
Appellate body for decisions of federal authorities 

 
provincial administrative courts 

LVwG - Appellate bodies for decisions of provincial authorities 
 

 
Administrative High Court 

VwGH - www.vwgh.gv.at  

Extraordinary appellate body 

Constitutional Court 
VfGH - www.vfgh.gv.at 

Extraordinary appellate body 

 

social services,  
citizenship,  
residence titles 

 
Austrian Integration Fund 

ÖIF – www.integrationsfonds.at  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

- Implementation of the “Integration Agreement” 

- Management of projects financed by the Asylum, Migration and 

Integration Fund on behalf of the Federal Ministry for Europe, 

Integration and Foreign Affairs 

- Administration of projects financed by the European Integration 

Fund 

Relation of subordination  

Other relation 

Legend: 

 
Federal Ministry of the Interior 

BMI – www.bmi.gv.at 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

- Monitoring of the entries into and exits from the federal territory 

- Aliens Police issues 

- Immigration and emigration matters 

- Asylum matters 

- Exclusion orders, expulsions, removals 

- Extradition matters 

- Citizenship matters 

- Participation in the implementation of the National Action Plan for Integration 

 
Federal Ministry of Labour, Social Affairs, Health and Consumer Protection 

BMASGK - www.bmasgk.gv.at  
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

- Determination of quotas for work permits 

- Determination of exceptions from the Act  

Governing the Employment of Foreigners 

- Regulations on work permits for certain  

groups of foreigners 

- Regulation for Skilled Workers 

 
Federal Ministry for Europe, Integration and Foreign Affairs 

BMEIA – www.bmeia.gv.at 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

- Visa procedures and consular fees 

- Matters of development cooperation and coordination of the international 

development policy 

- Matters of cooperation with the UNHCR and the ICRC 

- Matters of integration 
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International protection, residence 
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